K-93

Arcadia, Caulks' Field House 1743
Fairlee

Private

Caulks Field House is a vernacular building with the date
1743 in the gable. It is a two story, three bay brick building with
gable roof and small brick side wing. The brick detailing is fine
with Flemish bond with glazed headers used on major facades. The
water table steps up over segmental arches above the basement windows.
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Caulks Field House is on Rt. 20 near Fairlee, up a long lane,

.6 miles north of Sandy Bottom Road. It stands amid cultivated fields
facing west.

The main house is a two story, three bay brick building with
a steep gable roof. There is a date, 1743, in the north gable and
in form and detailing the structure is typical of vernacular houses
of that period. An o0ld brick wing, one and one-half stories high
and three bays wide stands against the north gable. As deep as the
main house, it is slightly out of line with it. The wing has central
entrances, front and rear, each flanked by two 6/6 sash windows. The
second floor is 1lit by four shed dormers which extend from the roof
ridge. Like the main house, the old wing has a very steep roof and
an enclosed end chimney which retains its drip course but has lost
its o0ld cap.

The brick work of the main house is exceptional. The west (main
facade) is laid in Flemish bond with all glazed headers; the south
gable has the same glazing and bonding pattern. Mortar joints on
all walls are grapevined. Window openings on the two basement and
the two first floor windows have segmental arches of alternating
stretchers and two vertically aligned headers. The lower of these
headers is glazed. There are no arches above the second floor
windows. The entrance door on both west and east facades is quite
wide and headed by a segmental arch bonded and glazed as are the
window openings. There is a four-pane transom light and Victorian

and modern doors. The beveled water table is found on all four facades,

providing a base for the building. It steps up over the basement
windows (see,"The Reward, K-90) and is laid in English bond. Brick
chimneys are enclosed within end walls and have banded caps. The
north gable is laid in bond; the east facade is identical
to the west except for the ommission of the glazed headers. The
brick is dark red in color.

Windows are evenly spaced on front and rear facades. There
are no windows in the north gable of the main house, but there are
two small attic windows on the south facade. There is also a tiny
window left of the fireplace. It has a segmental arch of alternating
glazed and plain headers and resembled similar windows at Lamb's
Meadow (K-H3 ). A modern gable roofed brick cellar entrance right
of the chimney may have replaced another such window. At Lamb's
Meadows these small windows light a closet and an interior cellar
stair. 2/2 Victorian sash are used in all windows.

A1l exterior wooden detailing, including window trim, cornice
and verge board is covered with aluminum siding.

Entrance porches are modern, however, an outline of a wide, one
story porch remains on the west facade and of a steep gable roofed
porch or shed on the east.

The survey team was unable to study the interior of this house.
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Caulk's Field is significant for its architecture and for its
role in Kent County history.

It is a remarkablg intact and unchanged (on the exterior)
example of the mid-17#h century vernacular country house. The nar-
row, tall structure with steep roof, high chimneys, and prominent
base are architypical of that architectural period. Also typical
is the meticulous attention to detailing and extraordinary crafts-
menship seen in the brick work. In all likelihood the wooden detail-
ing, if it survives, would show the same high skill and careful de-
tailing.

Caulk's F¢&ld house stands on a part of the grant called Arcadia
which was granted to the big land owner and vestryman of St. Paul's
Church, Michael Miller, on May 5, 1682.
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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HISTORIC AMERICAN BUILDINGS SURVEY

N K - 93

COUNTY Kent County INVEMTORY

TOWN VICINITY R . .. '

STREETNO. Near Tolchester 2. NAME Caulk’s field

R PER

ORIGINAL OWNER E:YTEEO PERIOD £7‘?3 Al

ORIGINAL USE wel ling RCHITECT Lolonia

PRESENT OWNER SEL BRELIY

BUILDER

PRESENT USE vwel ling
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3. FOR LIBRARY OF CONGRESS USE

- NOTABLE FEATURES, HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE AND DESCRIPTION

OPEN TO PUBLIC M
————

sregent Jdwner:  Tulio Forest Faras, Inc,

{Lutch Soveprnment )

Caulk’s Ficld is o two=story beick housc which is three bays
fony and one room deep with a story-and=a=half kitchen addition
of f the north gable end of the buildings. The brick of the main
portion, on the south and west sides, is laid in Flenish bond
with glazed headers and Lnglish bond on the other two sides.

An unusuul feature is a molded woter-tabrle with jogs over the
scgmental arch basement windows. The windows of the first
floor also have segmental urches and 2 over 2 sash., Therce are
oniy two openings on the second floor o each section. The
cinimneys arce within the gable~wal is and nave plaster band caps,.
In the north jable is the date, 1743, in jlazed headers, In
the south jable-end is one s:ail segmental arch opening which
has been bricked up., The entrance to tihw baseuwent is in this
south end,

A nearby field is the site of the only battle of the war of

1312 in Kent County., A taryland Historical Society marker
ivas been placed on the road near the site of the battle,
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@ 6. LOCATION MAP (Plan Optional)
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8. PUBLISHED SOURCES (Author, Title, Pages)
INTERVIEWS, RECORDS, PHOTOS, ETC.

Forman, Henry Chandlee
tarly ‘lanor and Plantqt ion
of daryland, 1934 - page

$
'

¢
i

ouses

9. NAME, ADDRESS AND TITLE OF RECORDER

tichael J. Bourne

Maryland Historical Trust
baTE OF REcore  f €bPUary 5, 1908




Handys Pt

Mj Olive

Ch_ " ® Butlertown /" o

‘ go _/ ~ ~

= N g
PRECINGE

. K7 Hopewsll
68

GRS RT 4

’ ;y "
Mador | e
S TTo L\ :
cT,
90 0;455 .

o,
" Ow
¢







SANDY BOTTOM

.’

N

Caulks Field
Memorial

21

o

e
CORNE

EESES

—"










Cavens Frgep Hovse MHHT G3
fockiate - Faipeee Ao Fovre 2o~ FAIRLEE, /Yp
FROW T - Sovrs easT

C-EnNGE7TRoOm  AHov6. /977







K~

Corce e TeelfLlfpve vo
. AT
Ve Al tf - fwrzﬂeﬂ it . .




